
Agenda
City of Fort Atkinson 

City Manager’s Office 
101 N. Main Street 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
IN PERSON AND VIA ZOOM 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 2, 2022 – 7:00 PM 
CITY HALL – SECOND FLOOR 

If you have special needs or circumstances which may make communication or accessibility 
difficult at the meeting, please call (920) 563-7760.  Accommodations will, to the fullest extent 

possible, be made available on request by a person with a disability. 

AGENDA 
1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call

3. Public Hearings – None

4. Public Comment: The City Council will receive comments from City residents. Comments
are generally limited to three minutes per individual. Anyone wishing to speak is required
to sign up in advance or state the following items for the record when called upon:
name, address, subject matter, and contact information. No action will be taken on any
public comments unless the item is also elsewhere on the agenda.

5. Consent Agenda: The Consent Agenda outlined below is hereby presented for action by
the City Council. Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda on the request of any
one Council member. Items not removed may be adopted by one action without debate.
Removed items may be taken up either immediately after the Consent Agenda or placed
later on the agenda at the discretion of the Council President.

a. Review and possible action relating to the minutes of the July 19, 2022 regular
Fort Atkinson City Council meeting (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director)

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5997866403?pwd=alcreldSbGpNUVI1VnR1RWF5bXovdz09 

Meeting ID: 599 786 6403 
Passcode: 53538 

Dial by Location 
+1 312 626 6799

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5997866403?pwd=alcreldSbGpNUVI1VnR1RWF5bXovdz09


 
 

b. Review and possible action relating to the minutes of the July 26, 2022 regular 
Plan Commission meeting (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 
 

6. Petitions, Requests, and Communications – None 
 

7. Resolutions and Ordinances:  
 

a. Second reading of an Ordinance Annexing the territory located at W6490 
Campus Drive and W6492 Campus Drive to the City of Fort Atkinson (Selle, City 
Engineer/Director of Public Works) 

b. Third and final reading of an Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map of the 
City of Fort Atkinson to change the zoning of the properties located at 603 N. 
Fourth Street, 609 N. Fourth Street, 615 N. Fourth Street, and 403 McMillen 
Street, from SR-5, Single-family Residential – 5, to I, Institutional (Selle, City 
Engineer/Director of Public Works) 
 

8. Reports of Officers, Boards, and Committees: 
 

a. City Manager’s Report (LeMire, City Manager)  
 

9. Unfinished Business – None 
 

10. New Business: 
 

a. Review and possible action relating to a request for a Public 
Monument/Building Review for installation of a fishing boy statue on the 
Riverwalk (Franseen, Parks & Recreation Director) 

b. Review and possible action related to replacement and update of HVAC controls 
for the Wastewater Utility main control building at a cost of not more than 
$43,952 (Christensen, Wastewater Utility Superintendent)  
 

11. Miscellaneous – None 
 

12. Claims, Appropriations and Contract Payments: 
 

a. Review and possible action relating to the Verified Claims presented by the 
Director of Finance and authorization of payment (Ebbert, 
Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 

 
13. Adjournment 

 
Date Posted: July 29, 2022 
 



 
 

CC: City Council; City Staff; City Attorney; News Media; Fort Atkinson School District; Fort Atkinson 
Chamber of Commerce 
 
Visit us online! City news and information can be found at www.fortatkinsonwi.net, and be sure to follow 
us on Facebook @FortAtkinsonWI. 
Note the City’s new .gov domain name and new phone numbers. Visit our website for more 
information.  
 
 
 

http://www.fortatkinsonwi.net/


  City of Fort Atkinson 
  City Manager’s Office 
  101 N. Main Street 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
IN PERSON AND VIA ZOOM 

TUESDAY, JULY 19, 2022 – 7:00 PM 
CITY HALL – SECOND FLOOR 

 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
President Scherer called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Present: Cm. Becker, Cm. Hartwick, Cm. Johnson, Cm. Schultz and President Scherer. Also 
present: City Manager, City Engineer, City Clerk/Treasurer, City Attorney. 
 
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS - NONE  

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE  

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA:  
a) Review and possible action relating to the minutes of the June 30, 2022 Economic 

Development Committee meeting (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 
b) Review and possible action relating to the minutes of the July 5, 2022 regular City 

Council meeting (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 
c) Review and possible action relating to the minutes of the July 5, 2022 License Committee 

meeting (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 
d) Review and possible action relating to the minutes of the July 13, 2022 Finance 

Committee meeting (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 
e) Review and possible action relating to building, plumbing, and electrical permit report 

for June 2022 (Draeger, Building Inspector/Zoning Administrator) 
f) Review and possible action relating to the City Clerk-issued License and Permit Report for 

June 2022 (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 
g) City Sewer, Water, and Stormwater Utility Financial Statements as of June 30, 2022 

(Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director)  
h) Review and possible action relating to Special Event: Parks & Recreation Youth Triathlon, 

Saturday July 30, 2022 at Rock River Park, Aquatic Center and Montclair Subdivision 
(Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 

i) Review and possible action relating to Special Event: Lemke Legacy 5K, August 20, 2022 
at Lion’s Park Shelter, Glacier Trail (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 

j) Review and possible action relating to Special Event: American Legion Post 166 2022 AA 
State Legion Baseball Tournament, July 29-August 2, 2022 at Jones Park (Ebbert, 
Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 



k) Review and possible action relating to Special Event: Lion’s Club, Brat & Curd Stand, 
during Rhythm Remix, Saturday, August 27, 2022 at Lorman Bicentennial Park (Ebbert, 
Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 

Cm. Becker moved, seconded by Cm. Johnson to approve the Consent Agenda as listed, items 
5.a. through 5.k. Motion carried.  
 

6. PETITIONS, REQUESTS, AND COMMUNICATIONS – NONE  
 

7. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 
a) Review and possible action relating to a Resolution approving participation in the 2023 
Jefferson County Road Aid Program and authorizing the City’s contribution of $6,191 from the 
2022 Street Program budget (Selle, City Engineer/Director of Public Works) 
Engineer Selle reviewed the match program, known as the County Road Aid Fund. In place since 
2005, the program allows municipalities to contribute cash to an account based upon the total 
length of streets in their jurisdiction. The County will in turn match that amount, effectively 
doubling the value. The work is then performed by the County crews, up to the amount 
available in the fund. 
 
Cm. Becker moved, seconded by Cm. Schultz to approve the resolution to participate in the 
2023 Jefferson County Road Aid Program and authorize the City’s contribution of $6,191 from 
the 2022 Street Program budget. Motion carried.  
 
b) Second reading of an Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map of the City of Fort Atkinson 
to change the zoning of the properties located at 603 N. Fourth Street, 609 N. Fourth Street, 615 
N. Fourth Street, and 403 McMillen Street, from SR-5, Single-family Residential – 5, to I, 
Institutional (Selle, City Engineer/Director of Public Works) 
Engineer Selle presented the second reading of the Ordinance.  Said properties are owned by 
Fort HealthCare of Fort Atkinson. Comments were provided at the Plan Commission meeting 
but no other comments since that time.  
 
Cm. Hartwick moved, seconded by Cm. Schultz to direct the City Manager to prepare this 
Ordinance for a third and final reading at the City Council meeting on August 2, 2022. Motion 
carried.  
 
c) Third and final reading of an Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map of the City of Fort 
Atkinson to change the zoning of 1205 Industrial Drive from HI, Heavy Industrial, to MI, Medium 
Industrial (Selle, City Engineer/Director of Public Works) 
Engineer Selle stated this is the third and final reading for the Ordinance. No feedback was 
received from the public for this request that has been reviewed at Plan Commission and City 
Council.  
 
Cm. Becker moved, seconded by Cm. Schultz to approve the ordinance to amend the Official 
Zoning Map of the City of Fort Atkinson to change the zoning of 1205 Industrial Drive from HI, 
Heavy Industrial, to MI, Medium Industrial. Motion carried.  



 
d) First reading of an Ordinance Annexing the territory located at W6490 Campus Drive and 
W6492 Campus Drive to the City of Fort Atkinson (Selle, City Engineer/Director of Public Works) 
Engineer Selle presented the first reading for these properties adjacent to the High School and 
Banker Road land owned by the City.  This will also be presented to the Plan Commission.  
 
Cm. Schultz moved, seconded by Cm. Becker to direct the City Manager to prepare this 
Ordinance for a second reading at the City Council meeting on August 2, 2022. Motion carried.  
 

8. REPORTS OF OFFICERS, BOARDS, AND COMMITTEES: 
a) City Manager’s Report (LeMire, City Manager)  
No action required. 
 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – NONE  
 

10. NEW BUSINESS: 
a) Review and possible action relating to the repurchase of land per the Klement Business Park 
Covenants (LeMire, City Manager) 
Manager LeMire reviewed the sale of land in 2020 of 7.80 acres to Mickelson Investments. 
After discussions with the property owner, the project plan is not compatible with the Klement 
Business Park covenants, the City Zoning Ordinance or the City’s MS4 storm water discharge 
permit from the DNR.   
 
Cm. Schultz moved, seconded by Cm. Becker to approve the repurchase of parcel number 226-
0514-1742-000 in the Klement Business Park for $153,246.97 per the Covenants, with a closing 
date of August 26, 2022. Motion carried.  
 
b) Review and possible action relating to Alcohol Beverage License application for Guanajuato 
Produces for the licensing period of July 19, 2022 to June 30, 2023 (Ebbert, 
Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 
Clerk Ebbert reviewed the renewal application which included no changes to the premise or the 
agent of the business.  
 
Cm. Becker moved, seconded by Cm. Hartwick to approve the Alcohol Beverage License 
application for Guanajuato Produces for the licensing period of July 19, 2022 to June 30, 2023 
contingent upon payment of all monies owed to the City. Motion carried  
 
c) Review and possible action relating to Alcohol Beverage License application for La Morenita, 
LLC for the licensing period of July 19, 2022 to June 30, 2023 (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance 
Director) 
Clerk Ebbert presented the application for a license for the 303 S 3rd Street location.  The 
applicant appropriately completed the application, passed a background check, provided proof 
of their seller’s permit and federal ID number.   
 



Cm. Becker moved, seconded by Cm. Schultz to approve the Alcohol Beverage License 
application for La Morenita, LLC for the licensing period of July 19, 2022 to June 30, 2023 
contingent on completion of required Responsible Beverage Server course and payment of all 
monies owed to the City. Motion carried.  
 

11. MISCELLANEOUS – NONE 
 

12. CLAIMS, APPROPRIATIONS AND CONTRACT PAYMENTS: 
a) Review and possible action relating to a vehicle damage claim against the City of Fort 
Atkinson from an incident on June 27, 2022 (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 
Clerk Ebbert reviewed the submitted notice of incident from June 27, 2022 submitted from a 
driver for damage to her vehicle that occurred that morning. She stated her vehicle sustained 
damage when she had to drive on the shoulder of Janesville Avenue in front of Kwik Trip, 1672 
Janesville Avenue. She provided appropriate documentation which was turned over to LWMMI 
for review. Following Staff review, it was confirmed that the City gave permission to Kwik Trip 
to reroute traffic onto the shoulder of Janesville Ave while they constructed a turn lane. The 
shoulder was not constructed to withstand heavy traffic and had deteriorated forming 
potholes. The City was not aware of the potholes until the incident was reported on 6/27 and 
appropriately filled the potholes that same day.  Statewide Service 
s, Inc administers the claims for LWMMI and following review, have recommended the denial of 
the claim based on the fact that the investigation revealed no liability on behalf of the City.  
 
Cm. Schultz moved, seconded by Cm. Becker to disallow the vehicle damage claim against the 
City of Fort Atkinson from an incident on June 27, 2022 pursuant to Wis. Stats. 893.80(1g), and 
as recommended by the City’s insurance carrier and staff. Motion carried.  
 
b) Review and possible action relating to the Verified Claims presented by the Director of 
Finance and authorization of payment (Ebbert, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director) 
Cm. Becker moved, seconded by Cm. Hartwick to approve the Verified Claims presented by the 
Director of Finance and authorize payment. Motion carried.   
 

13. ADJOURNMENT 
Cm. Becker moved, seconded by Cm. Schultz to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 7:34 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted 
Michelle Ebbert 
City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director   



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  City Manager’s Office 
  101 N. Main Street 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

IN PERSON AND VIA ZOOM 
TUESDAY, JULY 26, 2022 – 4:00 PM  

CITY HALL – SECOND FLOOR 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Manager LeMire called the meeting to order at 4:00 pm.  
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Present: Cm. Kessenich, Cm. Lescohier, Cm. Schultz, Manager LeMire and Engineer Selle. Also 
present: City Attorney, Building Inspector and Clerk/Treasurer. 
 
Absent: Cm. Highfield. 
 
3. REVIEW AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATING TO THE MINUTES OF THE JUNE 28, 2022 
REGULAR PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
Cm. Lescohier moved, seconded by Cm. Schultz to approve the minutes from the June 28th Plan 
Commission meeting as submitted. Motion carried.  

 
4. REVIEW AND POSSIBLE RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL RELATING TO AN 
APPLICATION FOR ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY LOCATED AT W6490 CAMPUS DRIVE AND 
W6492 CAMPUS DRIVE TO THE CITY OF FORT ATKINSON (PFA-2022-02) (DRAEGER) 
Inspector Draeger reviewed the submission from property owner Tip of the Spear, LLC to annex 
property located on the northwest corner of the intersection of Campus Drive and Banker Road 
from the town of Koshkonong to the City of Fort Atkinson. Tip of the Spear, LLC purchased the 
two parcels in May of 2021. Public utilities are in place on Campus that coincides with the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Cm. Schultz moved, seconded by Cm. Kessenich to recommend that the City Council perform 
two additional readings and then adopt an ordinance annexing the territory along the Campus 
Drive and Banker Road as depicted on the attached annexation exhibit, and assign a temporary 
zoning classification of SR-2, Single Family Residential 2.  Motion carried.  
 
5. REVIEW AND POSSIBLE RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL RELATING TO A 
REQUEST FOR A PUBLIC MONUMENT/BUILDING REVIEW FOR INSTALLATION OF A FISHING 
BOY STATUE ON THE RIVERWALK (PMR-2022-01) (FRANSEEN) 
Director Franseen presented the donation to install a public art statue with a bronze memorial 
plaque along the Riverwalk. This type of request now requires Plan Commission and City 
Council review and approval through the Public Monument/Building Review process.  
 



 
 

Staff is requesting the review on behalf of a donor in memory of her son. The donor and staff 
worked together to select a statue that reflects the theme of the Riverwalk with a five-foot tall 
fishing boy fully funded by the donor.  
 
Multiple locations were reviewed and staff is recommending to install the statue between the 
Wellington Place and the condos behind Public Parking Lot 8 on the Riverwalk. The statue 
would be installed by a bolt and anchor system under the tree stump and placed on the 
concrete ledge with the fishing pole faced towards the river. The bronze plaque would be 
installed directly under the fishing statue on the concrete ledge. Nearby is a light to illuminate 
the statue. Pictures of the preferred location of the statue and a draft of the plaque are 
provided in the packet of information. 
 
The donor would like a 9” x 4” bronze plaque to say, “In Memory of Richard W. Milburn. For the 
fisherman, always a new horizon.” The bronze plaque is consistent with the existing plaques 
along the Riverwalk.  
 
Cm. Kessenich moved, seconded by Cm. Lescohier to approve the application and recommend 
that the City Council consider the Public Monument Request for a statue at the designated 
location on the Riverwalk. Motion carried.  
 
6. REVIEW AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATING TO A REQUEST FOR A 1-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY 
MAP IN THE CITY’S EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION FOR PARCEL NUMBER 016-0514-0914-
070 IN THE TOWN OF KOSHKONONG (CSM-2022-04) (SELLE) 
Engineer Selle presented the request for property on Main Street. The property owner would 
like to break off a +/- 2 acre parcel to sell to the adjacent landowner.  This is within the extra-
territorial area of the City of Fort Atkinson, abutting the City boundary on 3 sides of the 
proposed parcel.  
 
Cm. Schultz moved, seconded by Cm. Lescohier to approve the Preliminary CSM with the 
condition that the final map for signature indicate the officially mapped right of ways noted on 
both the parent parcel and the newly created parcel and recommend consideration by the City 
Council.  Motion carried.  
 
7. REVIEW AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A SITE PLAN REVIEW FOR GREEN BAY PACKAGE 
EXPANSION (SPR-2022-04) (SELLE) 
Engineer Selle introduced the submission from Green Bay Packaging whom owns a 10-acre site 
that includes an approximately 143,000 square foot facility within the City’s Gordan F. Day 
Industrial Park (northeast area). Today, the eastern side of the site includes an ingress/egress 
point from Blackhawk into the site for truck loading/unloading. The other two access points 
(further west) are for employee and visitor parking. The company has been located in Fort 
Atkinson since the early 90’s with over 70 employees.  
 
City staff recommends approval of the Site Plan, subject to the following conditions: 



 
 

• The applicant has indicated that there will be a roof-mounted RTU for the office expansion 
area, however it was not identified on the submitted plans. Require the applicant to provide 
the location and screening plans that meet all Zoning Ordinance requirements, subject to 
approval by City staff. 

• Waive the requirement for at least one bicycle and pedestrian access point and minimum 
bicycle parking stalls. There is no existing sidewalk along Blackhawk Drive to connect to and 
the western side of the building has an existing bicycle rack provided. 

• Waive the requirements for curbing along the northern edge of the parking and access 
entryway (industrial uses must have curbing in the front yard) to accommodate the 
stormwater management plans. 

• Require the applicant to provide signage plans (if desired) that meets the requirements of 
the Zoning Ordinance, subject to approval by City staff. 

• Require the applicant to provide a stormwater maintenance agreement for the structure 
proposed and record said agreement with the County 

• Require the applicant to provide a comprehensive construction site erosion control plan for 
approval by City Staff prior to issuance of building permits.  

• Any other recommendations of City staff and the Plan Commission. 
 
Cm. Kessenich moved, seconded by Cm. Schultz to approve the Site plan for Green Bay 
Packaging with the conditions noted by staff in the memo. Motion carried.  
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
Cm. Lescohier moved, seconded by Cm. Schultz to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 4:28 pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted 
Michelle Ebbert 
City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda
City of Fort Atkinson 

City Clerk/Treasurer’s Office 
101 N. Main Street 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: August 2, 2022 

TO: Fort Atkinson City Council  

FROM:  Andy Selle, P.E., City Engineer/Director of Public Works 

RE: Second reading of an Ordinance Annexing the territory located at W6490 
Campus Drive and W6492 Campus Drive to the City of Fort Atkinson  

BACKGROUND 
Applicant Ryan Quam, on behalf of property owner Tip of the Spear, LLC, has requested the 
annexation of two properties located on the north side of Campus Drive from the Town of 
Koshkonong to the City of Fort Atkinson. The parcels (016-0614-3323-014 and 016-0614-3323-
015) were purchased by Tip of the Spear in May 2021 with the goal of urban development
within the City.

DISCUSSION 
The subject properties are located immediately south of the City’s property and planned 
neighborhood along Banker Road. Annexing the subject properties will allow them to be 
redeveloped in the City on municipal water and sewer and in accordance with the 
Comprehensive Plan. There is also an opportunity for these parcels to be developed in 
coordination with the City’s planned neighborhood. The City is considering the creation of a Tax 
Increment District in this area, and including these parcels, this fall. The parcels must be located 
within the City limits in order to be included in the TID.  

The Comprehensive Plan shows the future land use of these parcels as “Planned 
Neighborhood,” which is described as a carefully planned mix of primarily single-family 
residential development, including some two-family, multi-family residential, and 
neighborhood businesses uses consistent with the residential character of the area and 
retaining the City’s existing balance of residential types.  

The applicant has requested that the property be zoned RS-2, Single-family Residential – 2. In 
the short term, this district allows the continued use of the single-family dwelling on each 
parcel. However, in the future, depended on the planned uses, the zoning may be changed to a 
denser residential or mixed use zoning district.  

This request has been submitted to the State Department of Administration, and staff will 
include the findings from the DOA when available. The Plan Commission reviewed this request 
at the meeting on July 26th recommended that the Council perform two additional readings and 
adopt the Ordinance as presented.  



 
 

2 
 

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
Staff does not expect this annexation ordinance to impact the City financially. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council perform the second reading of this Ordinance and 
direct the City Manager to prepare the Ordinance for a third/final reading on August 16, 2022.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Plan Commission Staff Report; Draft Annexation Ordinance 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  City Engineer’s Office 
  101 N. Main Street 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

1 
 

REQUEST FOR  
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
DATE: July 26, 2022 
 
PROPERTY ADDRESSES: W6490 Campus Dr. 
and W6592 Campus Dr.  
 
PARCEL NUMBERS: 016-0614-3323-014 and 
016-0614-3323-015 
 
OWNER: Ryan D. Quam 
 
APPLICANT: Tip of the Spear LLC  

 
FILE NUMBER: PFA-2022-02 
 
EXISTING ZONING: N/A 
 
EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant Land and Rural 
Residential 
 
REQUESTED USES: SR-2 Single Family Residential 
 

 
 
 
 

REQUEST OVERVIEW: 
Applicant and Property owner Tip of the Spear, LLC has requested the annexation of the property 
located on the northwest corner of the intersection of Campus Drive and Banker Road from the town 
of Koshkonong to the City of Fort Atkinson. Tip of the Spear, LLC purchased the two parcels in May of 
2021. Public utilities are in place on Campus Dr. 
 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 
Annexation by Unanimous Consent does not require a public notice.  
 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN (2019): 
Future land use for this site Is listed as Neighborhood. Per the City Comprehensive Plan, this parcel is 
part of the Northwest Quadrant Planning Area. The Proposed use is in concert with the City 
Comprehensive Plan. No future use for the parcel has been identified.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Request for Annexation 
July 26, 2022 
PFA-2022-02 

2 
 

 

 
 
 
 



Request for Annexation 
July 26, 2022 
PFA-2022-02 

3 
 

 
 
 
REVIEW BY ZONING ADMINISTRATOR AND CITY STAFF: 
City Council heard the first reading of the annexation ordinance at their July 19th meeting and moved 
it on to a second reading. There was no public comment.   
 
The applicant has requested that the property be zoned SR-2, Single Family. The zoning request was 
made to meet the requirements set forth in the Fort Atkinson Zoning Ordinance for the existing 
structure.  
 
The city is considering the creation of a Tax Increment District in this area, including these parcels, 
later this summer. The parcels must be located within the city limits to be included in the TID. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the Plan Commission recommend the City Council perform two additional 
readings; adopt the ordinance annexing the territory as depicted on the attached annexation exhibit; 
and assign a zoning classification of SR-2 Single Family.  
 
The City Council is expected to review this request at the regular meetings on August 2nd and August 
16th.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

- Tip of the Spear Annexation Application 
- Petition for Annexation 
- Annexation Map 
- Legal description  
- Annexation Ordinance  













 

PFA-2022-02, Tip of the Spear Annexation 

 
ORDINANCE NO.   

 
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING  

THE TERRITORY LOCATED AT W6490 CAMPUS DRIVE AND W6492 CAMPUS DRIVE  
TO THE CITY OF FORT ATKINSON 

 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Fort Atkinson, Wisconsin, does 
hereby ordain as follows: 
 
 Section 1. TERRITORY ANNEXED.  That pursuant to Sec. 66.0217 of the Wisconsin 
Statutes, and the Petition for Annexation filed by Ryan D. Quam, agent for Tip of the Spear, 
LLC, as the property owner, and all four residents of voting age, the following described 
territory in the Town of Koshkonong, Jefferson County, Wisconsin, is hereby annexed to the 
City of Fort Atkinson, Wisconsin: 

 
A PART OF THE: SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST ONE-QUARTER, 
INCLUDING ALL OF LOT 1 OF JEFFERSON COUNTY CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. (CSM) 
4431, RECORDED IN VOLUME 22 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAPS ON PAGE 168 AS 
DOCUMENT NO. 1123862 OF JEFFERSON COUNTY RECORDS, OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 
6 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST, TOWN OF KOSHKONONG, JEFFERSON COUNTY, WISCONSIN, 
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  
 
BEGINNING AT THE WEST ONE-QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 33; THENCE, 
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST ONE-QUARTER, N00°50'50"W, 659.35 
FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTH ONE-HALF OF SAID SOUTHWEST 
ONE-QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST ONE-QUARTER; THENCE, ALONG THE NORTH LINE 
OF SAID SOUTH ONE-HALF OF SAID SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 
ONE-QUARTER, S88°09'18"E, 552.09 FEET TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE WESTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF BANKER ROAD; THENCE, ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE, S21°41'03"W, 30.72 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A TANGENT CURVE, BEING 
CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 2031.17 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS 
S19°26'49"W, 158.59 FEET; THENCE, CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE, SOUTHERLY, 158.63 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 04°28'29" TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 1 OF 
CSM 4382; THENCE, ALONG LAST SAID NORTH LINE, N88°09'15"W, 204.94 FEET TO THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 OF CSM 4382; THENCE, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF 
SAID LOT 1 OF CSM 4382 AND ITS SOUTHERLY EXTENSION, S00°50'50"E, 196.47 FEET TO 
ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 1 OF CSM 3015; THENCE, ALONG LAST 
SAID NORTH LINE, S87°01'15"W, 41.54 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 
1 OF CSM 3015; THENCE, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 OF CSM 3015, 
S00°51'00"E, 147.22 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 OF CSM 3015; 
THENCE, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1 OF CSM 3015, S88°05'45"E, 159.14 
FEET TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH AFORESAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 



 

PFA-2022-02, Tip of the Spear Annexation 

BANKER ROAD; THENCE, ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, S12°07'17"W, 
134.12 FEET TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST ONE-
QUARTER AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CAMPUS DRIVE; THENCE, ALONG 
LAST SAID SOUTH LINE AND NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, N88°05'45"W, 367.77 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. (A/K/A PARCEL NUMBERS 0614-0614-3323-014 AND 016-
0614-3323-015, CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 5.387 ACRES OF LAND). 

 
 Section 2. EFFECT OF ANNEXATION.  From and after the effective date of this 
Ordinance the territory described in Section 1 above shall be part of the City of Fort Atkinson 
for any and all purposes provided by law and any persons coming or residing within such 
territory shall be subject to all Ordinances, rules, and regulations governing the City of Fort 
Atkinson. 
 
 Section 3. PAYMENT TO THE TOWN OF KOSHKONONG. The applicant has requested 
annexation to the City per Section 66.0217(2) – Direct Annexation by Unanimous Approval. As 
such, no payment to the Town of Koshkonong is required (Wis. Stats. 66.0217(14)(a)).  
 
 Section 4. ZONING CLASSIFICATION. A) The Territory annexed to the City of Fort 
Atkinson by this Ordinance is designated to be part of the following district of the City for 
zoning purposes and subject to all provisions of Title 15 of the Code of General Ordinances in 
the City of Fort Atkinson entitled “Zoning Ordinance” relating to such district classifications 
and to zoning in the City: SR-2, Single-family Residential District – 2.    
 
 Section 5. WARD DESIGNATION. A) The territory described in Section 1 of this 
Ordinance is hereby made part of Ward 12 of the City of Fort Atkinson, subject to all 
ordinances, rules, and regulations of the City. Population of this territory is four (4) on the 
effective date of this Ordinance.  
 
 Section 6. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Ordinance is found to be invalid or 
unconstitutional or if the application of this Ordinance or any person or circumstance is invalid 
or unconstitutional such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the other provisions or 
application of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid or unconstitutional 
provisions or applications. 
 
 Section 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and 
publication. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

PFA-2022-02, Tip of the Spear Annexation 

 
 
 
 Adopted this     day of     , 2022. 
 
      CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FORT ATKINSON 
 
 
 
             
      Christopher Scherer, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Michelle Ebbert, City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director 
 



Agenda
City of Fort Atkinson 

City Manager’s Office 
101 N. Main Street 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: August 2, 2022 

TO: Fort Atkinson City Council  

FROM:  Andy Selle, P.E., City Engineer/Director of Public Works 

RE: Third/final reading of an Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map of the 
City of Fort Atkinson to change the zoning of 603 N Fourth St., 609 N Fourth St., 
615 N Fourth St., and 403 McMillen St. from SR-5, Single Family Residential, to 
I, Institutional  

BACKGROUND 
Fort Healthcare, Inc. has requested a Zoning Map Amendment for the individual parcels located 
at 603 N Fourth St, 609 N Fourth St, 615 N Fourth St, and 403 McMillen St. Fort Healthcare is 
also the current owner of the proposed locations.  

This Request for a Zoning Map Amendment came before the Plan Commission at a Public 
Hearing for that purpose on June 27, 2022. Please see the attached Plan Commission staff 
report for an analysis of the request against the criteria set forth in Section 15.10.31 of the 
City’s Zoning Ordinance.  

There were several residents in the Public Hearing at the Plan Commission meeting. Most were 
looking for additional clarity on the proposed Zoning Map Amendment and associated 
expansion of the Fort Healthcare campus.  After discussion, the Plan Commission unanimously 
recommended that the proposed Zoning Map Ordinance move on to the first reading of the 
proposed Zoning Map Ordinance at Council.  

DISCUSSION 
As a result of the feedback during the Public Hearing, Fort Healthcare Inc, developed a letter to 
residents within the area and was mailed on June 30, 2022. The letter is attached here for 
Council’s review. A representative of Fort Healthcare will be present at the meeting to present 
the project to Council and answer questions.  

The City Council reviewed this matter and performed readings of the Ordinance at the meetings 
on July 5th and July 19th.  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
Staff does not expect this ordinance to impact the City financially. 



 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council perform the third reading and adopt the Ordinance as 
presented.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
6.28.22 PC Staff Report Packet ZMA-2022-02; Draft Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning 
Map; Letter from Fort Healthcare to Residents 



ZMA-2022-02, Fort Health Rezone 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE  
TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF FORT ATKINSON  

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Fort Atkinson, Wisconsin, do ordain as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. Section 15.02.03 of the City of Fort Atkinson Zoning Ordinance, adopting the 

Map of Standard Zoning Districts, is hereby amended to change the zoning classification of the 
following described properties from SR-5, Single-family Residential – 5, to I, Institutional:  
 

Lot 10 of the George Whitemore Plat, consisting of approximately 0.251 acres 
of land in the City of Fort Atkinson, Jefferson County, Wisconsin (a/k/a 603 N 
Fourth Street, Parcel Number 226-0514-0321-011);  
 
Lot 11 of the George Whitemore Plat, consisting of approximately 0.243 acres 
of land in the City of Fort Atkinson, Jefferson County, Wisconsin (a/k/a 609 N 
Fourth Street, Parcel Number 226-0514-0321-012);  
 
Lot 2 of Block 1 of the Weidemann’s First Addition, consisting of 
approximately 0.260 acres of land in the City of Fort Atkinson, Jefferson 
County, Wisconsin (a/k/a 615 N Fourth Street, Parcel Number 226-0514-0321-
004); and  
 
Lot 1 of Block 1 of the Weidemann’s First Addition, consisting of 
approximately 0.220 acres of land in the City of Fort Atkinson, Jefferson 
County, Wisconsin (a/k/a 403 McMillen Street, Parcel Number 226-0514-
0321-003). 

 
 

Section 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  
 
 

Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage, posting, or publication as 
provided by law. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ZMA-2022-02, Fort Health Rezone 

Enacted by the City Council of the City of Fort Atkinson, Jefferson County, Wisconsin, 
this __________ day of ____________, 2022.  

 
       CITY OF FORT ATKINSON 
 
 
 
             
       Christopher Scherer, President 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
         
Michelle Ebbert, City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director 
 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  City Engineer’s Office 
  101 N. Main Street 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

1 
 

REQUEST FOR ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
DATE: June 28, 2022 
 
PROPERTY ADDRESSES: 603 N Fourth St. 
609 N. Fourth St. 615 N Fourth St. 
403 McMillen St.  
 
PARCEL NUMBERS: 226-0514-0321-011 
226-0514-0321-012, 226-0514-0321-004 
226-0514-0321-003 
 
OWNER: Fort Healthcare Inc. 
 
APPLICANT: Fort Healthcare Inc.  

 
FILE NUMBER: ZMA-2022-02 
 
EXISTING ZONING: RS-5, Single-family Residential 
District – 5   
 
EXISTING LAND USE: Four Single-family Homes 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: I, Institutional 
 
REQUESTED USES: Parking Lot Expansion 
 

 

REQUEST OVERVIEW:  
Applicant and property owner Fort Healthcare Inc. has requested a Zoning Map Amendment to 
change the existing zoning of the four parcels outlined above from RS-5, Single-family Residential – 5, 
to I, Institutional. Fort Healthcare intends to expand the hospital parking lot to the north, and 
changing the zoning classification is the first action toward that goal. Fort Healthcare intends to move 
and/or demolish the four existing houses and vacation a section of North 4th Street in the future.  
 
Fort Healthcare parcel to the north of the hospital campus that is currently used for remote parking. 
One of the goals in changing the zoning classification of these parcels and expanding parking to the 
north is to eliminate the need for the remote parking area. The remote parking parcel may be used 
for new housing development in the future. 
 
The Plan Commission will hold a public hearing at the meeting on June 28th and may make a 
recommendation for action by the City Council based on the criteria outlined in the Zoning 
Ordinance, the analysis by staff, conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, and information 
gathered at the public hearing. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE:  
Zoning Map Amendment applications require a Class 2 Public Notice and notification of surrounding 
property owners. A public notice was published in the Jefferson County Daily Union on June 14th and 
June 21st. A notice of this public hearing at the Plan Commission was mailed to property owners 
within 100 feet of the subject property on May 26, 2022.  
 
 



Request for Zoning Map Amendment  
June 28, 2022 
ZMA-2022-02 

2 
 

 
COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN (2019):  
Future land use for this site is listed as Institutional. Per the City Comprehensive Plan, this district is 
intended to permit both large- and small-scale institutional development including those on single 
sites within larger areas of both residential and nonresidential zoning districts. Residential uses are 
intended to occur at an approximate density of 1 dwelling unit per acre. This district avoids the 
creation of commercial spot zone intrusions in primarily residential or industrial areas where spots of 
commercial zoning may be incompatible.  
 
Since the Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 2019, Fort Healthcare has made the decision to invest 
in its existing hospital facility rather than building a new facility in a new location. Part of the 
investment strategy is to consolidate certain operations within the hospital facility with the goal of 
possible redevelopment of other parcels currently used for parking and/or medical office uses in the 
area. The “healthcare center” concept in the Comprehensive Plan may be more centralized on the 
existing hospital site, while the northern parcels may become available for future redevelopment to 
support the housing needs of the community.  
 
REVIEW BY ZONING ADMINISTRATOR AND CITY STAFF:  
Section 15.10.31 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance outlines the process for Zoning Map Amendments. 
Section 15.10.31 (4) includes the following criteria for review by the Zoning Administrator and City 
staff in crafting a recommendation to the Plan Commission. The criteria from the Ordinance is in 
italics, and staff analysis is below. 
 

(a) Does the request advance the purpose of this Chapter as outlined in Section 15.01.03 and the 
applicable rules of Wisconsin Department of Administration and the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency?   

The purpose of the Zoning Ordinance is to protect the health, safety, morals, comfort, 
convenience, and general welfare of the public. It is designed to control and lessen 
congestion in the streets; to secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; to 
promote adequate light and air; to protect surface water and groundwater resources; 
to prevent the overcrowding of land; to avoid undue concentration of population; to 
preserve, protect, and promote property values; to facilitate the adequate provision of 
transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks, and other public facilities; to preserve 
the character of historic areas; and to preserve burial sites as defined in Sec. 
157.70(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes. It is also the intent of this Chapter to implement 
certain goals and objectives of the City of Fort Atkinson Comprehensive Plan, which 
are best addressed through zoning approaches, as enabled by Wisconsin Statutes.  
 
This request does advance the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance.  

 
(b) Is the request in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan? If the proposed amendment is not in 

harmony, a Comprehensive Plan Amendment is required prior to rezoning.  
Yes – the request is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan (see above).  



Request for Zoning Map Amendment  
June 28, 2022 
ZMA-2022-02 

3 
 

 
(c) Does the request maintain the desired overall consistency of land uses, land use intensities, 

and land use impacts within the pertinent zoning district?  
Yes – The subject parcels are adjacent to an Institutional zoning district and were 
identified in the Comprehensive Plan as parcels that may be appropriate for future 
institutional uses.  
 

(d) Does the request address any of the following factors that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map?  

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map are not in conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  

b. A mapping mistake was made, including the omission on the Official Zoning Map of an 
approved zoning map amendment. 

c. Factors have changed (such as new data, infrastructure, market conditions, 
development, annexation, or other zoning changes), making the subject property more 
appropriate for a difference zoning district.  

d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, creating the need for an amendment to the 
Official Zoning Map.  
 
The current zoning designation does not conform to the Comprehensive Plan. The 
requested change would bring the land into conformity.   
 

Section 15.10.31(7) directs the Plan Commission to consider items (a) through (d), as well as the 
following, when making a recommendation to the City Council: 

(e) Do the public benefits outweigh any and all potential adverse impacts of the proposed 
amendment? 

Supporting the investment in and expansion of a healthcare facility in the City of Fort 
Atkinson outweighs any potential minor adverse impacts.  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend that the City Council approve the requested 
Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning of the properties located at 603 N Fourth St., 609 N. 
Fourth St., 615 N Fourth St., and 403 McMillen St. from (SR-5) Single Family Residential -5, to (I) 
Institutional based on its compatibility with the Comprehensive Plan and compliance with Section 
15.10.31(4) of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
The City Council is expected to review this request at the regular meetings on July 5th and July 19th.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Application requesting the Zoning Map Amendment; Explanation of Request; Notice to the Public 
with Zoning Exhibit 



FORT • ATKINSON 

City of Fort Atkinson 
101 N. Main Street 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

City of Fort Atkinson Procedural Checklist for Zoning Map Amendments 
(Rezoning) 

Requirements per Section 15.10.31 

This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application to amend 
the Official Zoning Map and by the City to process the application. 

Name, company, and client (if applicable): _F _o_rt_H_e_a_lt_h_C_a_ r _e_, _ln_c ____________ _

Phone number: 920-568-5490 Email: james.n elson@forthc.com 
Property address of requested zoning change: 603 N Fourth Street; 609 N Fourth Street; 
615 N Fourth Street; 403 McMillen Street 

Zoning change request from _S_R_5 ___________ to In s titutiona l

Application Packet Requirements 

The Applicant shall submit an electronic or paper copies, as may be required by the City, of the 
application. 

□ A map of the subject property to scale, depicting the following:

□ All lands for which the zoning is proposed to be amended and all other lands within 100
feet of the boundaries of the subject property.

0 All parcel numbers for the subject property. 

0 Current zoning of the subject property and its environs, and the jurisdiction(s) which 
maintains that control. 

□ All lot dimensions of the subject property.

0 A graphic scale and north arrow. 

0 Legal description of the property. 

0 Written justification for the proposed Official Zoning Map amendment, including evidence that the 
application is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

0 Any further information needed by the Plan Commission to facilitate the making of a 
comprehensive report to the Plan Commission and City Council. 

II Criteria Used to Evaluate the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment 

The Zoning Administrator shall review the complete application and evaluate whether the proposed 
amendment: 

1. Advances the purposes of this Chapter as outlined in Section 15.01 .03 and the applicable rules of
Wisconsin Department of Administration and the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

2. Is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan.

3. Maintains the desired overall consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts
within the pertinent zoning districts.

Zoning i'vfap A111e11d111e111 Page 1 of 2 



FORT •ATKIHSON 

City of  Fort Atkinson 
101 N. Main Street 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

4. Addresses any of the following factors that are not properly addressed on the current Official
Zoning Map:

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map are not in conformance with the Comprehensive
Plan.

b. A mapping mistake was made, including the omission on the Official Zoning Map of an
approved zoning map amendment.

c. Factors have changed (such as new data, infrastructure, market conditions, development,
annexation, or other zoning changes), making the subject property more appropriate for a
different zoning district.

d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, creating the need for an amendment to the Official
Zoning Map.

Ill Process Checklist 

D Staff-Applicant meeting (if applicable) 

o Application fee of $200.00 received by City Clerk

□ Reimbursement of professional consultant costs agreement executed.

D Receipt of complete application packet by Zoning Administrator

o City Staff input

□ Class 2 legal notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk

o Class 2 legal notice published on _6.14.22_ and _6.21.22 _
□ Notification of neighboring property owners within 100 feet of the petition

□ Notification of clerks of municipalities within 1,000 feet of the petition

D Notification of airports within 1 mile of the petition

o Plan Commission Public Hearing, review and recommendation

o City Council review and action

Zoning Map A111end111e11t 

Date: __ _ 

Date: �jA/'0 
Date: 11,NV 

Date: _sw_ 

Date: sw_ _ 

Date: sw__ 

Date: __ _ 

Date: __ _ 

Date: __ _ 

Date: __ _ 

Date: __ _ 

Date: __ _ 

Page 2 o/2 



City of Fort Atkinson 

Comprehensive Plan 
.-··1 
•1 • City Bow1daries
··-· 

; ::• : Town Bouncfaries
D Parcels
D Right of Way

Previously Proposed
• • • Hwy 12 Bypass

Map 7: Future Land Use - City View � PN -Planned Neighborhood
D .AG - Agriculture/Rural D NC - Neighborhood Commericnl
- P -Pnrks D cc - Commwuty CommeriClll
- EC - Em-iroumental Corridor - DT - Downtown
D SF-U - Single Family Residential - Urban D U - Light Industrial/Business Park
D SF-E - Single Family Residential - E.'\-urban - GI - General Industrial

Land Us, 

D TF - Two Family/Townhouse Residential - CF - Community Facilities
D �IR - �fanufactured Residentinl - HF - Health Facilities
- MF-R - Multi-Family Residential - PivIU -Pfanned Mi. ... ed Use









  City of Fort Atkinson 
  City Manager’s Office 
  101 N. Main Street 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 
 
May 26, 2022 
 
 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 
 
The City of Fort Atkinson Plan Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, June 28, at 4 
p.m., or as soon thereafter as the matter can be heard, to review and make a recommendation 
to the City Council on a request for a Zoning Map Amendment for the properties located at 603 
N. Fourth St., 609 N. Fourth St., 609 N. Fourth St., 615 N. Fourth St. and 403 McMillen St. in 
the City of Fort Atkinson. The public hearing and Plan Commission meeting will take place both 
in-person at 101 N. Main Street, Fort Atkinson and via Zoom:  
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82214860406?pwd=TEVyUVdQM05VNFVzb0E2TUNTVnZlZz09 
 

Meeting ID: 822 1486 0406 
Passcode: 53538 

 
Dial by your location 

+1 312 626 6799 
 
The Zoning Map Amendment has been brought forward to change from Single Family Residential, 
SR5, to Institutional, I, to accommodate the expansion of the Fort HealthCare campus. 
 
The Plan Commission is seeking input from the public. For more information, please contact 
City Engineer Andy Selle at aselle@fortatkinsonwi.net or (920) 563-7760. You may attend the 
public hearing via Zoom or submit a letter or email expressing your thoughts to City Engineer 
Selle.  
 
 
Andy Selle, P.E. 
City Engineer/Dir. of Public Works 
 
AS/sw 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82214860406?pwd=TEVyUVdQM05VNFVzb0E2TUNTVnZlZz09
mailto:aselle@fortatkinsonwi.net


UMU

SR-7

SR-5

MRM-12

MRL-8

C
laren

ce S
t

M
em

o
rial D

r

N
 H

ig
h

 S
t

N 3rd St
M

cM
illen

 S
t

N 3rd St

M
em

o
rial D

r

N 4th St

Sherman Ave E

Edgewater Rd

Edgewate
r R

d

M
em

or
ia

l D
r

E Sherman Ave

Edgew
at

er
 R

d

N
 H

ig
h

 S
t

State Hwy 26

W
ilco

x S
t

A
rm

en
ia S

t

C
o

 R
d

 K

Jefferso
n

 S
t

M
cM

illen
 S

t

Glenview Ct

Ralph St Curtis Cir

Fort Healthcare Rezoning Map
Handeyside Ln

CITY OF FORT ATKINSON

Jefferson County Tax Parcels

City of Fort Atkinson Municipal Boundary 2021 (incl. Preliminary Annexation)

City of Fort Atkinson Base Zoning

SR-2 - Single Family Residential - 15,000sf

SR-5 - Single Family Residential - 8,000sf

SR-7 - Single Family Residential - 6,000sf

5/4/2022, 5:55:15 PM
0 0.07 0.150.04 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,514

ArcGIS Web AppBuilder

ASelle
Polygon

ASelle
Callout
INSET MAPRezone SR-5 to Institutional 

ASelle
Polygon

ASelle
Rectangle



       James J. Nelson, 
Senior V. P. Finance & Strategic Development/CFO 

       Fort HealthCare, Inc.  
       611 Sherman Avenue E 
       Fort Atkinson, WI  53538  

 james.nelson@forthc.com 
        920-568-5490    FAX   920-568-5412 
 
June 30, 2022 
 
Name 
Address 
Fort Atkinson, WI  53538 
 
Dear Neighbors, 
 
Thank you to those that came to the Fort Atkinson Planning Commission on Tuesday, June 28.  I 
sincerely appreciated the concerns you expressed and ability to discuss those concerns with you 
during and after the meeting.  I also appreciated the city engineer’s willingness to stick around 
after the meeting to help answer a few questions.  The main concerns I heard in the meeting were 
concerns over drainage, noise, light pollution, and traffic flow.  Fort HealthCare is working on 
the “parking plan” for the four lots.  We have hired an engineering firm to help us make sure we 
meet all the City’s requirements as well as address the concerns you raised.  We should have a 
good draft “parking plan” by the end of summer.  Before we are able to proceed with the 
construction of the parking space for our employees, the City will require that we bring the 
“parking plan” to the Planning Commission for their approval.  Before we submit our “parking 
plan” to the Planning Commission, we will invite you to sit down with us to go over the plan to 
make sure we eliminate as many of the concerns as possible.   
 
As was relayed at/after the Planning Commission meeting, Fort HealthCare has been actively 
participating in the City’s Comprehensive Planning process since its inception.  Even before the 
initial Comprehensive Plan in 2008/9 was put into place we had identified any growth for us to 
be towards the other medical buildings toward the north.  That is why the City placed the block 
north of Fourth Street between Armenia and McMillen in the “Community Facilities” category in 
their “Future Land Use” maps.  This is also why we have been purchasing the houses as they’ve 
become available on this block since 2005.  To date, we own 7 of the 12 properties on this block.  
 
We know living on the edges of a hospital campus has its challenges.  We appreciate your 
patience with us as we grow and address the changing needs of a community hospital. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
James J. Nelson 
SVP/CFO 
Fort HealthCare, Inc. 
 



Agenda
City of Fort Atkinson City 

Manager’s Office 
101 N. Main Street 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: August 2, 2022 

TO: Fort Atkinson City Council  

FROM:  Brooke Franseen, Parks & Recreation Director 

RE: Review and possible action relating to a request for a Public 
Monument/Building Review for installation of a fishing boy statue on the 
Riverwalk 

BACKGROUND 
Staff in the Parks and Recreation Department has been working with a donor to install a public 
art statue with a bronze memorial plaque along the Riverwalk. This type of request now 
requires Plan Commission and City Council review and approval through the Public 
Monument/Building Review process. 

One of the objectives of the Public Monument/Building Review process is to identify and 
explain the public purpose of a proposed public monument to ensure that it serves the 
community as a whole, not just an individual or group. 

The statue will include a memorial to an individual; however, as a piece of public art along the 
public Riverwalk, it will certainly serve the community as a whole by providing interest and 
attraction to the Riverwalk. 

Staff is requesting the review on behalf of a donor in memory of her son. The donor and staff 
worked together to select a statue that reflects the theme of the Riverwalk with a five-foot tall 
fishing boy fully funded by the donor. 

DISCUSSION 
Multiple locations were reviewed and staff is recommending to install the statue between the 
Wellington Place and the condos behind Public Parking Lot 8 on the Riverwalk. The statue 
would be installed by a bolt and anchor system under the tree stump and placed on the 
concrete ledge with the fishing pole faced towards the river. The bronze plaque would be 
installed directly under the fishing statue on the concrete ledge. Nearby is a light to illuminate 
the statue. Pictures of the preferred location of the statue and a draft of the plaque are 
provided in the packet of information. 



 
 

2 
 

The donor would like a 9” x 4” bronze plaque to say, “In Memory of Richard W. Milburn. For the 
fisherman, always a new horizon.” The bronze plaque is consistent with the existing plaques 
along the Riverwalk. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
The Parks and Recreation Department maintains the Riverwalk, including painting over graffiti. 
This specific location was chosen due to the consistent illumination in the area, which may 
reduce the chance of vandalism. In the event of the statue being graffitied, Randolph Rose 
recommends paint thinner to remove any graffiti and staff will perform the work to remove 
potential graffiti. In the event of a broken piece, such as a fishing rod or fish, City staff will do 
our best to fix it with the resources available. The donor has acknowledged if the statue needs a 
new fishing pole or fish due to vandalism, there is a chance it may not get replaced unless 
funded by the donor. The donor would be notified with the chance to replace the broken 
pieces. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve this request for a Public Monument/Building 
Review allowing the installation of the fishing boy statue at the designated location on the 
Riverwalk. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Plan Commission Memo; Application; Fishing Boy Statue Pictures; Fishing Boy Plaque; Location 
of Statue; Demonstration Placement Photo; Listing of Public Art in Fort Atkinson 
 
 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  City Engineer’s Office 
  101 N. Main Street 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

1 
 

REQUEST FOR PUBLIC MONUMENT/BUILDING REVIEW  
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
DATE: July 26, 2022 
 
PROPERTY ADDRESSES: Unaddressed 
property at the southeast corner of the 
Riverwalk and the Glacial River Trail 
Pedestrian Bridge 
 
PARCEL NUMBER: N/A 
 
OWNER: City of Fort Atkinson 
 

APPLICANT: Brooke Franseen, Parks & Recreation 
Director 
 
FILE NUMBER: PMR-2022-01 
 
EXISTING ZONING: DR-8, Duplex Residential  
 
EXISTING LAND USE: Riverwalk 
 
REQUESTED USES: Public Art 
 

 

REQUEST OVERVIEW:  
Staff in the Parks and Recreation Department has been working with a donor to install a public art 
statue with a bronze memorial plaque along the Riverwalk. This type of request now requires Plan 
Commission and City Council review and approval through the Public Monument/Building Review 
process.  
 
Staff is requesting the review on behalf of a donor in memory of her son. The donor and staff worked 
together to select a statue that reflects the theme of the Riverwalk with a five-foot tall fishing boy 
fully funded by the donor.  
 
Multiple locations were reviewed and staff is recommending to install the statue between the 
Wellington Place and the condos behind Public Parking Lot 8 on the Riverwalk. The statue would be 
installed by a bolt and anchor system under the tree stump and placed on the concrete ledge with 
the fishing pole faced towards the river. The bronze plaque would be installed directly under the 
fishing statue on the concrete ledge. Nearby is a light to illuminate the statue. Pictures of the 
preferred location of the statue and a draft of the plaque are provided in the packet of information. 
 
The donor would like a 9” x 4” bronze plaque to say, “In Memory of Richard W. Milburn. For the 
fisherman, always a new horizon.” The bronze plaque is consistent with the existing plaques along 
the Riverwalk. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 
Public notice is not required for the Public Monument Review process. City staff has reviewed this 
request and has no objections to the statue, the location, or the memorial plaque.  
 
 



Request for Public Monument/Building Review 
PMR-2022-01 
July 26, 2022 

2 
 

 
COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN (2019): 
The Comprehensive Plan outlines cultural resource goals, objectives, and policies in Chapter 5: 
Cultural Resources. It encourages the enhancement and beautification of downtown, commercial 
corridors, and other key places throughout the community with increased landscaping, signage, 
public infrastructure, and public art. Further, the Plan identifies the goal of preserving, enhancing, 
and promoting the City’s unique character and cultural and historic assets. An objective within this 
goal is to promote the City’s unique cultural assets as a source of community pride and as an 
attraction.  
 
As can be seen in the attached Public Art in Fort Atkinson document, the City enjoys a wide variety of 
public art within the parks, open spaces, and public areas of the City. Note most of the statues are 
built in a similar scale, theme, and color palate, as the City has used Randolph Rose as the vendor for 
majority of the statues. The fishing boy has been purchased through Randolph Rose to stay consistent 
with the statues within the City. 
 
The proposed statute is in line with and furthers the objective of using such public art as a source of 
community pride and attraction.  
 
PUBLIC MONUMENT PURPOSE:  
One of the objectives of the Public Monument/Building Review process is to identify and explain the 
public purpose of a proposed public monument to ensure that it serves the community as a whole, 
not just an individual or group.  
 
The statue will include a memorial to an individual; however, as a piece of public art along the public 
Riverwalk, it will certainly serve the community as a whole by providing interest and attraction to the 
Riverwalk.  
 
MAINTENANCE PLAN FOR MONUMENT:  
Another objective of the Public Monument/Building Review process is to identify the short and long-
term maintenance needs of the monument or building and properly plan for them, with the hope 
that all future maintenance, repair, and replacement of structures does not fall onto the City.  
 
The Parks and Recreation Department maintains the Riverwalk, including painting over graffiti. This 
specific location was chosen due to the consistent illumination in the area, which may reduce the 
chance of vandalism. In the event of the statue being graffitied, Randolph Rose recommends paint 
thinner to remove any graffiti and staff will perform the work to remove potential graffiti. In the 
event of a broken piece, such as a fishing rod or fish, City staff will do our best to fix it with the 
resources available. The donor has acknowledged if the statue needs a new fishing pole or fish due to 
vandalism, there is a chance it may not get replaced unless funded by the donor. The donor would be 
notified with the chance to replace the broken pieces. 
 



Request for Public Monument/Building Review 
PMR-2022-01 
July 26, 2022 

3 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends that the Plan Commission review the application and recommend that the City 
Council approve this request for a Public Monument/Building Review allowing the installation of the 
fishing boy statue at the designated location on the Riverwalk. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Application; Fishing Boy Statue Pictures; Fishing Boy Plaque; Location of Statue; Demonstration 
Placement Photo; Listing of Public Art in Fort Atkinson  



















  City of Fort Atkinson 
  Parks and Recreation’s Office 
  30 N. Water St. W. 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

 
 

PUBLIC ART IN FORT ATKINSON 
Updated 5/24/22 

Rock River Park 

    Rotary Arch             $6,896 

    Football Field Entrance                  $3,000 

     Puppy Serenade    $10,093 

Jones Park 

    Pitcher/Catcher Entrance   $3,747 

    Sullivan Memorial    $1,700 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  Parks and Recreation’s Office 
  30 N. Water St. W. 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

 
 

    South Entrance    $3,500 

    North Entrance    $8,000 

Riverwalk 

    Fallen Soldier     $2,500 

   Al Haukom Plaque    $3,000 

Downtown 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  Parks and Recreation’s Office 
  30 N. Water St. W. 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

 
 

     Library       $40,000 

    Schink Memorial    $3,600 

    Park & Rec      $1,500 

     Park & Rec      $2,000 

 

    Police Fountain     $2,500 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  Parks and Recreation’s Office 
  30 N. Water St. W. 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

 
 

    Firefly      $11,740 

    Barie Park Fountain    $10,000 

    Native American Statues along Main St. Bridge $20,000 

    Pocket Park Clock     $15,000 

McCoy Park 

    McCoy Park Memorial    $5,000 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  Parks and Recreation’s Office 
  30 N. Water St. W. 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

 
 

      Veteran’s Memorial    $76,500 

     War Dog Memorial       $62,000 

Memorial Park 

      Memorial Park     $6,500   

Lions Park 

     Vorpal Memorial    $2,200 

     Lion      $1,000 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  Parks and Recreation’s Office 
  30 N. Water St. W. 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

 
 

    Lion      $1,000 

 

     Klatt/Abendroth Sculpture   $12,000 

 

    Starkweather sculpture    $10,000 

 

 

   Folk Art Pole                       $5,000                              

 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  Parks and Recreation’s Office 
  30 N. Water St. W. 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

 
 

Bicentennial Park 

     Helping Hands Fountain    $5,022 

      McKee Memorial     $16,500 

 

Glacial River Bike Trail 

      Entrance Arch   $14,100 

 

 

    Swing Kids    $2,775 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  Parks and Recreation’s Office 
  30 N. Water St. W. 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

 
 

    Endless Days    $4,000 

    Bike Club Sculpture   $2,500 

    Dog Club Sculpture    $5,000 

        Roahen Sculpture   $12,000 

 

 Ensweiler Sculpture   $6,000 



  City of Fort Atkinson 
  Parks and Recreation’s Office 
  30 N. Water St. W. 
  Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

 

 
 

 

  Lorine Niedecker   $2,000 

 

  “Is It Art?”              $1,000 

 

Wheels Park 

       Freestyle Skateboarder   $4,380 

 

 

TOTAL               $405,253 



Agenda
City of Fort Atkinson City 

Manager’s Office 
101 N. Main Street 

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: August 2, 2022 

TO: Fort Atkinson City Council 

FROM:  Paul Christensen, Wastewater Utility Supervisor 

RE: Review and possible action related to replacement and update of HVAC 
controls. 

BACKGROUND 
The 2022 Wastewater Utility CIP includes $52,000 for the replacement and upgrade of the 
HVAC controls for the main control building. The current controls were installed in 1992 and are 
no longer supported, or repairable.  

DISCUSSION 
There are five local control panels for each of the five air handler units (AHU’s) in the main 
control building. Each AHU runs independently, with no unified control and no ability to use a 
schedule for temperature setbacks for energy efficiency. The upgrade would replace the 
current control panel for each AHU, and also add a unifying main HVAC control panel that 
would provide supervisory control of the system. The supervisory control panel would allow 
access to temperature settings and allow scheduling of temperature settings and setbacks. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
We solicited and received three proposals for the upgrade project. 

AES, Inc. of Milwaukee, WI  $68,238 

Helm Group of Freeport, IL  $43,952 

Basset Mechanical of Kaukauna, WI $51,512 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the proposal from the Helm Group of Freeport, IL for the cost of $43,952 to 
replace and upgrade the HVAC controls for the Wastewater Utility main control building. 
Funding for this project is budgeted from the 2022 CIP program. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Proposals attached. 


























	Agenda
	7.19.22 City Council Minutes
	7.26.22 Plan Commission Minutes
	Memo Annexation at W6490 Campus Dr.
	Petition for Annexation
	DOA Annexation Form
	Annexation Legal Description
	Annexation Map
	Draft Ordinance

	Ordinance to amend Offic ial Zoning Map Fort HealthCare Memo
	Ordinance
	Plan Commission Packet
	Letter to Neighbors

	Fising Boy Statue Memo
	7.26.22 PC Packet - PMR-2022-01 Fishing Boy.pdf
	7.26.22 PC Staff Report - PMR-2022-01 Fishing Boy.pdf
	Fishing Boy Statue Plan Com Application.pdf
	Public Art in Fort Atkinson.pdf


	Memo HVAC controls replacement
	Helm Proposal
	Bassette Mechanical Proposal
	Automated Energy Solutions Proposal 




